


ROME, N.Y.  --  "The City of American History"





	The city of Rome, with a population of about 35,000, is known as the City of American History, capitalizing on geography and events that combined to forge the area's past deeply into the national fabric.


	It was here that the upper waters of the Mohawk River (and access to the Atlantic) were separated by only about two miles from Wood Creek and a navigable water route to the Great Lakes.  Forced to carry their canoes from one spot to the other, Indians called the area "De-o-wain-sta" -- "The Great Carrying Place."  The geographical significance increased with the arrival of European trappers and traders, who used the route as the easiest way to carry riches in furs from the heartland of the New World to East Coast ports.


	Strategic location was not lost on military experts facing continuing conflict in the colonies.  For nearly a century, the area was the scene of intensive conflict among the British, the French and the Indians.  In 1758, during the French and Indian War, the British erected Fort Stanwix on highlands overlooking the Mohawk River end of the Great Carrying Place.  This replaced several smaller installations which had been destroyed.


	A decade later, British officials and representatives of the Iroquois Confederacy met at the fort to sign a treaty which ended the policy of British kings and colonial governors ceding Indian lands for political favors.  The treaty protected Indian property and still determines land titles today in parts of New York and Pennsylvania.


	A period of neglect followed the treaty and the fort deteriorated.  With the outbreak of hostilities between England and her North American colonies, the area again gained strategic military significance.  In  1776, a 700-man colonial garrison brought Fort Stanwix to renewed prominence.  A year later, British commanders sought to split the colonies by bringing armies north from New York City, south from Canada along the Champlain Valley, and eastward from the Niagara Frontier down the Mohawk River to converge on Albany.


	On Aug. 3, 1777, Colonel Barry St. Leger, coming from Niagara, laid siege to Fort Stanwix with a force of 800 British troops and more than 1,000 Indians.  It was during this battle that a flag of stars and stripes  -- crafted from red, white and blue material inside the fort -- was first flown in the face of enemy fire.


	Seventy-five miles downstream, militia commander General Nicholas Herkimer received word of the British attack, assembled a force of 800 men and boys from Mohawk River Valley settlements and farms and marched westward to relieve the fort.  The British, having learned of Herkimer's advance, prepared an ambush along the river at Oriskany, five miles to the east.  The resulting conflict, on a man-to-man basis, is considered the bloodiest battle of the Revolution.   When the guns went silent, St.  Leger's force was badly mauled, most of his Indians were  either dead or had deserted.  Herkimer's bloodied band returned to their homes; where the general died of wounds 11 days later.
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	On Aug. 22, 1777, 19 days from the start of the siege, the British retreated westward, allowing Fort Stanwix to become the only bastion in the newly united states that did not fall to the enemy at some point in the war.  The fort's successful stand denied St. Leger an opportunity to rendezvous with other forces and played a major role in denying crucial reinforcements to the army of General John Burgoyne in the pivotal Battle of Saratoga a few weeks later.  Consequently, Burgoyne surrendered to the American force; spurring France and Spain to declare war on England and to send help to the colonial cause.


	In 1784, the Treaty of Fort Stanwix was signed, closing the last phase of the American Revolution by ending hostilities with the Indians and allowing settlers to move westward --- without fear --- to new frontiers.  What had once been wilderness soon became the land of expansion.  Baron von Steuben, the Prussian military expert who had brought discipline to the rag-tag troops of the colonial army, retired to the hill country northeast of Rome.  Vast acreage in the southern shadow of Fort Stanwix also received a new owner -- General George Washington.


	Forty years after the fort garrison withstood the British siege, another small army of people descended on the growing village of Rome.  It was July 4, 1817, and they came to participate in ceremonies marking the turning of the first shovel of dirt for the Erie Canal, just west of the present downtown.


	French canal experts predicted it would take 40 years to build what was the greatest architectural and engineering feat of its time.  Americans did it in seven, opening up the continent for immigration and trade.  The Erie Canal provided the only water route through the Appalachian Mountains south of the St. Lawrence River.  New York City became the nation's premier port as cargo moved from the Midwest to market at one-tenth the cost and one-quarter the time as overland.  While material moved east, human cargo and dreams of a new beginning flowed west.  The Erie Canal became one of the major routes for pioneers commencing their march across the continent.


	With the coming of the railroads, "iron horses" on rails replaced the powerful draft animals along the canal towpath, again taking advantage of the relatively level route through the eastern mountains.  Rail and canal transportation allowed Rome to fully participate in the nation's industrial revolution.  On May 10, 1851, local businessman Jessie Williams established a simple means for making cheese, thus creating the nation's first cheese factory.  Fifteen years later, there were 500 similar factories in the U.S., a number that doubled to 1,000 three years later.


	From the late 19th century through World War II, an influx of mills earned Rome the title "Copper City."  Revere Copper Products carries on that heritage.
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